

Community Plus+ Queensland

Annual Report 2022-23



Empowering communities to be the heart of inclusive social change.

## Purpose

To harness the strengths, resources and capacities of local people, to increase the wellbeing of all. As a community-led organisation we are part of creating communities that are equal, connected and empowered.





Providing pathways for inclusion, preparedness, and sustainable growth



#### **Connecting People** with Opportunities

Cultivating meaningful opportunities, partnerships and focused advocacy.



#### One Community Plus+

Investing in people, practice and systems.

### Values



Welcoming All

with respect, care and joy



Staying Connected

to people, place and our past



Being Creative

for healing, curiousity and transformation



#### Empowering Others

#### to learn, take action and grow



### Making a Difference

changing lives and our world

# **Table of Contents**

Our Committee	4
Chairperson Report	6
Manager Report	7
First Nations Engagement	8
Annerley Community Service	9
West End Community House	12
Yeronga Community Centre	15
Community Resilience & Recovery	19
QSTARS	19
Our Year in Numbers	22
Financial Report	23
Partners & Supporters	24



## **Our Committee**



Bec Langdon President Joined 2015

Bec has always worked in tech and telco organisations and brings a human and customer centred approach to a technical environment. Bec started with Community Plus+ through the Boarders Breakfast in West End cooking toast and chatting with community members.



**Holden** Vice President Joined 2018

Jane joined the Committee after volunteering at West End Community House and seeing first-hand the real impact CP+ was having. The opportunity to do purposeful work with passionate and talented staff, volunteers and community members is why she loves being part of Community Plus+.



**Carmel Towler** Treasurer Joined 2011

Carmel is a Financial and Office Administrator working in a disability organisation in North Brisbane. She has spent many years working in the community sector with people who are marginalised and experience intellectual and developmental disabilities. She has a Diploma in Business and Administration majoring in financial administration.



Mark Hargraves Secretary

Joined 2019

Mark brings a knowledge of governance, probity, financial and stakeholder management and real estate development. Mark has lived in the local area for over a decade and believes equality, engagement and environment are the most important factors in building a thriving community.



Pauline Peel Board Member | Former President Joined 2014

Pauline has been a senior executive in Brisbane City Council and the Qld and South Australian governments working in the areas of social, cultural, economic development and Indigenous Affairs. She has consulted to the community and government sectors, nationally and internationally in community engagement, leadership and strategic planning.





Board Member Joined 2012



Ostling Board Member Joined 2020

Marilyn has been a member of a number of community groups and committees – most notably as president of the West End State School P&C and Fiesta organising committee. As well as the Community Plus+ Management Committee, Marilyn currently sits on the Mater Human Research Ethics Committee.



Zoë Pashley Board Member

Board Member Joined 2022

Zoe has worked in Human Resources for over 15 years, initially working with large corporate firms, and in 2017 started her own HR Consultancy Business, supporting Small to Medium Finance and Tech firms with HR needs. Zoe is a certified member of the Australian Human Resource Institute and qualified in HR, Change and Project Management. Susan retired three years ago after several decades teaching Fine Art at Queensland College of Art, Griffith University though she continues to supervise postgraduate students. Susan first had contact with Community Plus+ through the fundraising venture TRACE initiated in 2015 by Community Plus+ committee members.



Pete Waldie

Board Member Joined 2020

While obtaining a PhD studying coral reef communities and the human communities that depend on them, Pete observed that community health is not based on the strength of its members, but on the bonds and relationships between them.

Pete shares his passion for sustainable living at work – managing projects for a nature conservation organisation.



Shannon is very proud to be part of the Community Plus+ management committee for a number of reasons. Shannon has worked for key partner Jacobs for over two decades and so is very pleased to represent partner organisations into the committee and to bring the connectivity of a large professional and technical services organisation into the needs of Community Plus+. Shannon's technical background is as an engineer specialising in flooding. Shannon is keen to bring more, strong knowledge around flooding and climate resilience into the ongoing community resilience initiatives undertaken by the Community Plus+ team.



Board Member Joined 2022

## **Chairperson Report**



Bec Langdon

Community Plus+ President During the reporting year from July 2022 through to June 2023, the people of our communities have continued to endure financial pressure, housing shortages and food insecurity but every single day our people bring optimism, hope and connection even on the most trying of days.

The design of the Community Plus strategy 2023 to 2026 was created collaboratively and endorsed in October 2022. It is a strategy to guide and adapt as a living engagement that acknowledges the deeply felt impact of significant financial, health and weather events.

This year we have made excellent progress in delivering upon this strategy, highlighted here but detailed in the following pages of this annual report.

The operations team has grown and adapted to bring our strategic pillar of "One Community Plus" to life in how we organise and operate and the new operating model further provides connectedness and capacity. Community Plus+ actively grew our investment in "Resilient Communities" building capacity and being generous with our expertise to other organisations. Our expanded partnerships deeply embedded in our communities has "Connected people with opportunities".

In March 2023, the Voice referendum was announced and building on our position statement we took a strong and very active position for YES by engaging our community to bring conversations and connection to support recognition. Community Plus+ will continue to prioritise a shared future with the First Peoples of Australia underpinned by recognition, healing and development of relationships.

In April 2023 the first sod was turned on the new permanent home of the Yeronga Community Centre in Villa Street. The relocation in late 2023 is a significant milestone on securing a permanent home and sustainable connection with community. We remain grateful to our local member Hon. Mark Bailey and Hon. Leanne Enoch the Minister for Treaty, Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships, Communities and the Arts for their ongoing commitment in delivering this purpose built facility for our community.

The Management Committee is immensely proud of our front line team and the incredible impact they have had again throughout the year. Their resilience and dedication has been unwavering in connecting, supporting and empowering our communities. In addition, I am grateful to my colleagues who volunteer on the Management Committee for their time, skills and dedication over the past year.

Community Plus+ remains energised, committed and prepared for our communities. I thank you all for your connection, partnership and ongoing support.

With a heart full of gratitude, Bec Langdon

Rhaydor

## **Manager Report**



Mel Hilditch Community Plus+ Manager As we come to end of our first year delivering on our 2023 –2026 Strategic Plan, I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to each of you, members, volunteers, and staff, for your generous contribution to building resilience, creating inclusion, connection and pathways to opportunity in community.

As One community Plus, together, we've evolved and matured our strong capability to build resilient and connected communities by listening to and amplifying the voices of those directly impacted by disaster, cost of living, housing and social injustice.

The Community Plus+ team have worked energetically to empower our community, offering support, resources and opportunities that have made tangible differences in the lives of our community members. We do this through offering, community outreach programs, tenancy support, community resilience programs, social and creative activities and events, positive activation of community spaces and can successfully multiply all we do through active and engaged partnership and collaboration.

This year we have focussed investment in walking the talk, leading out on our commitment to build meaningful partnership and amplifying the voice of First Nations people to act as allies in delivering justice with First Nations people in our local communities, through our investment in a First Nations Lead position, RAP plan development and YES Campaign. There is so much depth and breadth to this work in partnership and we look forward to continuing the journey in the years to come.

During 2022/2023 Community Plus received increased investment from Queenslansd State Government including a funding uplift from Department of Treaty, Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships, Communities and the Arts to support delivery of our Neighbourhood Centre model in West End, Yeronga and Annerley. Our Brisbane Service Navigator and Targeted Rebuild Case Management Service recieved additional investment to continue and expand support to residents across the Brisbane LGA who are still rebuilding after the 2022 Rainfall and flood event.

I am confident of the strong strategic pillars we have laid as foundations to ensure our collective commitment, resilience and passion is harnessed to lead out on positive change in our communities.

Thank you to our management committee, staff and volunteers for being an integral part of empowering communities to be at the heart of inclusive social change. I look forward to what we will achieve together in the years to come.

Mel Hilditch

# **First Nation's Engagement**

Community Plus+ continues to invest in our commitment to work in meaningful partnership with First Nations peoples, to amplify their voices and deepen our commitment to reconciliation. This year, Community Development Worker Kylie Deen moved into the role of First Nation's Engagement Lead. Kylie has led out on stakeholder and community engagement to build the Community Plus Reconciliation Action Plan alongside RAP Working Group members: Mel Hilditch, Kirsten Marlow, Community Plus+ Vice President Jane Holden and Board Members, Marilyn Trad and Pauline Peel.

#### **Community Outreach**

Create at the Kiosk is a weekly event of music with the Whoopee-Do Crew, art, coffee and conversation at the Kurilpa Kiosk and People's Park on Boundary Street in West End. Kylie Deen has worked to develop a warm, fun and culturally inclusive space where anyone from the local community can come to connect and create.

#### **Cultural Walking Tour**

In January we provided a cultural walking tour throughout West End with a group of international students all the way from Elmhurst University in Illinois to visit Musgrave Park, People's Park Kiosk and West End Community House. Local elder Uncle Adam and Artist Duane Doyle shared their stories of cultural connection, the impact of colonisation and the significant history of these spaces.

#### **Collaboration with Brisbane Festival**

For the second year in a row, Community Plus+ has collaborated with Brisbane Festival. Songwriter Jessie Lloyd, Brisbane Blacks Elders Aunty Dawn Daylight, Uncle Adam Hopkins, Uncle Barry Tanner, Auntie Chantay Link and Kylie Deen and the team from West End Community House came together to present West End Stories. The show weaved storytelling and song writing tools engaged in truth telling to illustrate a historical timeline of West End through the lens of First Nations people.

#### **National Reconciliation Week**

During National Reconciliation Week 2023, staff from West End Community House attended and hosted several events to learn more and celebrate First Nation's peoples' histories, cultures, and achievements. In collaboration with Reconciliation Australia, Community Plus+ hosted a Reconciliation Yarning Circle at the West End Croquet Club featuring guest speakers Aunty Sandra King, Maurice Serico and Marlon Riley to hear their stories on truth-telling and reconciliation. The event emphasised the power of community inclusion in breaking barriers and fostering cultural exchange. Other highlights were the Art Gang Reconciliation Art Exhibition at Jacobs and a Reconciliation Community Breakfast with an Acknowledgement of Country by Aunty Dawn Daylight and a cultural art activity facilitated by Artist Duane Doyle.

# **Annerley Community Service**

Annerley Community Service has continued to thrive with a large number of volunteers and community members coming together. Last year, we activated CAPE Hub (Connection, Activity, Participation and Empowerment) - a pop-up information and referral session occurring twice a week. The pop -up colocated with Braille House to provide a well-known and accessible space for community. CAPE Hub has been a safe space for community members to engage with one another.

#### **Community Connection and Belonging Project**

In February 2023 CC+B project lead, Julia, finished up with the project which coincided with the end of the Pathways Out Of Homelessness BCC pilot project funding. The partnership had applied for ongoing funding through state and council grants but were unsuccessful.

In May 2023 the project was officially defunded. Our Annerley community worker, Kirsten, continues this project work in partnership with Bruce Riddel from Annerley Baptist Church through the delivery of the Community Lunch and Community meetings and creating a future Older Women's lunch through the SWISH project.

#### **Community Led Photo Competition**

A highlight event for the CC+B project was the photography competition exploring two themes, "stories of home" and "stories of belonging" co-designed with community through meetings and workshops. At the awards presentation event community were joined by local and state politicians; Cr Steve Griffiths, representative from Cr Nicole Johnson's office, Amy McMahon MP, who joined the community in conversation and listened to their stories about home and belonging. The winner of the Belonging category shared her story of being welcomed to the community as a refugee. She was taken in by the church and welcomed to the lunch, given opportunities and friendship by the community.

#### **CC+B Project Evaluation**

The report findings covered 7 key areas relating to the impact of the project for community connectors and people experiencing housing insecurity & homelessness.

- Practical assistance to people experiencing housing insecurity & homelessness.
- The opportunity for the community to respond to homelessness & social isolation.
- Building the capacity and resilience of the community.
- Facilitating a place of connection for people who experience social isolation.
- Vulnerable community members can find valued roles through the project.
- The project is accessible.
- Training and support for volunteers is valuable.

## **Annerley Junction Festival**

The Annerley Junction Fest has celebrated a decade of street life in Annerley. The sprawling festival went from Braille House down to Annerley Library and community Hall. The event focused on the community's talent (our vibrant, creative city), featuring performances from local bands and musicians, circus performers, kids' activities and an exhibition of creative works.

This year it expanded to include a fashion show with local drag queen compere, over double the music acts, and performance demos from local groups at Braille House.

Junction Fest 2022 was the tenth Annerley community festival and was easily the biggest and the best. This time with the support of local businesses and residents we were able to close off Dudley Street East up to Blacket Street and use the Annerley Arcade carpark. As a consequence, live bands were able to play in a more central location. We included a petting zoo and street performers, provided an active travel area and had twice as many stalls and food trucks as last year (52 up from 23).

In addition, all the successful activities from 2021 - pop up art gallery, Braille House jumping castle and Devonshire teas, and library storytelling - were retained. Verbal feedback and survey responses show a universally positive perception by the community.

The success of the event in the eyes of the Annerley Junction Fest committee has been confirmed by feedback from participants and attendees. 33.3% of those surveyed have said that they would like to be involved in next years' festival and a further 7.4% said they would consider being involved. Responses, both written and verbal, were predominantly positive.

The Annerley Junction Fest committee estimated approximately 2500 people attended the Junction Festival in the tenth year of running. There was great engagement with attendees staying for longer duration and significant foot traffic across the multiple sites. Much of the feedback both written and verbal, suggested that the event times be extended. The event organising committee has taken that into consideration for future festivals.













# **West End Community House**

West End Community House (WECH) celebrated many successes in the past financial year, embracing change and trying out new things playing an important part in our ongoing development. We warmly welcomed our new community development worker, Kirsten Marlow and community support worker, Dione Carrol to the team.

#### **RISE (Referral Information Support and Engagement)**

WECH offers a safe, friendly and engaging open house space for all community members Monday to Friday 9am – 11am. The team continue to assist community members in finding relevant information on needs and issues they are facing and linking into appropriate referral pathways. This year has seen an increase in food relief due to the rising cost of living and the housing crisis. With the support of Oz Harvest, Fare Share and donations from the local community, the community pantry and fridge has been a great help to those facing food insecurity.

#### **Community Breakfast**

Community Breakfasts continued their tradition of tasty breakfasts, comradery and inclusion, thanks to a great volunteer team. Community members continue to appreciate access from services such as the Micah Projects Street to Home nurses, Homeless Health Outreach Team and NDIS service providers that often attend the breakfast.

#### **Art Gang**

The Art Gang had a fantastic year with artworks being included in many exhibitions including the 2022 QCOSS Conference and National Reconciliation Week at Jacobs. The group also held two exhibitions throughout the year for Mental Health Week and the WECH showcase in Bunyapa Park, where many artworks were enjoyed and purchased by local community. The Art Gang continues to run with our Community Arts Development Worker Sue Loveday and several volunteers.

#### **Garden Project**

Following months of soil replacement works in the front yard at WECH - the greenspace was in great need of a rejuvenation project. A BBQ fundraiser was held at Bunnings Newstead in July 2022 with the help of John (Garden Project Facilitator), friends from Jacobs Engineering and students that raised over \$4000. Throughout the year, WECH hosted two working bees to prepare and then plant the garden beds with all sorts of delicious herbs and veggies including tomatoes, beans, lettuces and rosemary.

























# Yeronga Community Centre

It has been a fantastic year at Yeronga Community Centre. Previous staff member Melinda McInturff stepped into a newly appointed role as the Community Resilience Coordinator, and we welcomed Community Development Worker Amy Truong to the team. Community Plus+ also acknowledge the work of Donna Bowe who lead the centre from December 2022 - July 2023.

#### **Open House**

This year, Yeronga Community Centre's Open House program was accessed more than ever by community members affected by the increased costs of living and the housing crisis. We continued to provide the community information, referrals, computer assistance and food relief. We have added to the Open House program this year with a Virtual Reality class and a Barre class. Regular events were also held during the year with clothes swaps, seniors' excursions, information sessions, art group and workshops to provide social inclusion and education.

#### **Food with Thought Program**

The food with Thought food relief continues to be an important program at YCC. Our group of dedicated volunteers continue to make amazing meals and desserts. The program is made possible by the generosity of community donors and supplies sourced from Oz Harvest QLD and Bakers Delight. Community members struggling with food insecurity appreciate access to fresh and nutritious meals available each week.

#### **Neighbourhood Centre Funding Boost Celebrations**

In September 2022, Yeronga Community Centre hosted an event to celebrate \$230 000 boost in funding for the Neighbourhood Centres. Community Plus+ was joined by Cameron Dick MP, Leeanne Enoch MP and Mark Bailey MP who all enjoyed time at Yeronga Community Centre, a bacon and egg roll from the breakfast volunteers and many excellent conversations. We also warmly welcomed representatives from QCOSS, Neighbourhood Centres Queensland and The Services Union. It was a lively gathering with relief for the additional funding to highlight the extraordinary impact Neighbourhood Centres have on local communities.













## Brand New Purpose Built Yeronga Community Centre

The brand-new purpose built Yeronga Community Centre will be opening at Parkside Yeronga for community members to connect, share, learn and support one another. Community Plus+ plans to welcome visitors in early December, with a more formal opening in the new year.

Grown from the efforts of the Yeronga Flood Recovery Centre – a community initiative that responded locally to the Brisbane Floods of 2011. Since that time, the Yeronga Community Centre has operated from seven locations in Yeronga, with the Community Plus+ Management Committee investing a significate amount of time advocating for a permanent location.

A 2017 state government election commitment found a permanent location for the Yeronga Community Centre in the Yeronga Priority Development Area, now called Parkside Yeronga. Community Plus+ thanks Mark Bailey MP, Graham Perrett MP and Cr Nicole Johnston for their commitment to this new centre.

Community Plus+ will continue to run all current activities and services in the new Yeronga Community Centre. Because we've been a key contributor to the design, there's even a commercial kitchen for all the amazing meals Yeronga volunteers make from donated ingredients.

#### Key collaborators working with Community Plus+ to make this happen:

- Department of Treaty, Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships, Communities and the Arts
- Economic Development Queensland
- Jacobs
- Archipelago
- Nancy Cole

Community Plus+ is excited that both the Annerley–Stephens History Group and the All-Gauge Model Railway Club will be joining us at the Yeronga Community Centre. Our shared love of community and learning will make the centre a great foundation for a thriving Parkside Yeronga precinct.

The site will be further developed to deliver a new Queensland Health hub, alongside social and private housing.





## **Community Resilience & Recovery**

Community Plus+ build stronger communities by responding to the current and ongoing impacts of climate change in and across the Brisbane LGA, through development and delivery of recovery and resilience projects and programs. The Community Resilience Team had an active year advocating to all levels of government for change and support for vulnerable communities to prepare, strengthen and build resilience in their own households, neighbourhoods and the wider community.

#### **Community Initiatives**

During the year, the team supported over 500 households and made over 3500 referrals to agencies across the Brisbane LGA to help community members navigate and access information, and services to support their recovery. The team also delivered Poetry and Gardening Workshops on community resilience and how to be prepared for disaster and extreme weather. A highlight was the Resilient Homes Fund information sessions held at Yeronga Community Centre with over 200 people attending, amongst other locations in Sandgate, Oxley and Red Hill.

#### **Program Funding**

In November 2022 Department of Treaty, Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships, Communities and the Arts provided funding from the Australian and Queensland governments under the Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements to deliver Service Navigation and Targeted Case Management across the Brisbane Local Government Area. The funding has allowed us to support over 300 families to navigate government, NGO's and other agencies to recover from the rainfall and flooding event in Feb/Mar 2022.

In February 2023, the program had received over \$500 000 worth in funding to build stronger and more resilient communities for the future. With an increase in funding, in June 2023 Community Plus+ employed four new Service Navigators and Case Management workers to continue this work until June 2024.

#### **Partnerships**

We are proud to have partnered with over 100 NGO's, Government agencies, corporate and individual donors, builders, contractors and support services to build the community recovery and resilience team's impact in the community. Thanks to GIVIT, Caxton Legal, PHN Metro South and Rotary Australia to name a few.

## **Queensland Statewide Tenant Advice and Referral Service**

The Queensland Statewide Tenant Advice and Referral Service (QSTARS) is a free independent advice and referral service for all Queensland renters managed by Tenants Queensland and delivered by Community Plus+ throughout the inner south of Brisbane.

The QSTARS team has had a very busy 12 months. In the third quarter of the 22/23 financial year, we saw four consecutive weeks with referrals above 30 and output targets (hours) exceeded by close to 10%. The current and worsening housing crisis has increased the number of clients who are experiencing housing instability and the risk of homelessness. The number one reason for a referral in the past 12 months was the termination of a tenant's residential tenancy agreement with 37% of clients identifying as being at risk of homelessness.





### Hours spent assisting tenants

### **Support Demographics**



# **Top 5 Tenancy Problems**

Termination of residential tenancy agreements

**Co-tenancy issues** 

Repairs and maintenance – lessor's obligations

**Bond disputes** 

Rent issues (arrears, increase, decrease)

# **Top 5 Suburbs**

South Brisbane Annerley West End Inala Kangaroo Point



## **Our Year in Numbers**

**43 475** Neighbourhood Centre Visits

**49 390** Information & Referrals

**2 619** Volunteer Shifts

**13 616** Food Items Distributed

**20 075** Donated Items

## **Financial Report**

#### Annual Financial Report Year Ending 30th June 2023

It is with pleasure that I, Carmel Towler, present the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023.

2022/23 has been a solid year and I am pleased to say that the finances have remained in a healthy shape.

The previous year showed a negative amount of \$54,406, this was due to the organisation investing in staff and other projects to support our community. However this year Community Plus has attracted funds for our new projects which you can read about in the Annual Report.

The Statement of Financial Position is showing a profit of \$74,427. These funds will be used for projects in 2023/2024.

The Auditor has provided us with a clear Audit of our finances with no exceptions. You can read in the financial report, The Auditor's Opinion, Basis for Opinion, and their responsibilities in auditing our books.

### Total Assets - \$1,451,803

### Total Liabilities -\$524,267

### Total Member Funds - \$927,536

## **Partners & Supporters**

#### Community Plus+ would like to thank all of our collaborators, partners, supporters and friends.

#### **Our Partners**

All Gauge Model Railway Club Annerley Baptist Church Annerley-Stephens History Group Archipelago Architects BrisFest with Jessie Lloyd Brisbane City Council **Economic Development** Queensland Department of Treaty, Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships, Communities and the Arts JACOBS **Tenants QLD** Triple AAA Murri Radio

#### Elected Representatives

Cr Nicole Johnston Cr Trina Massey Cr Fiona Cunningham Cr Steve Griffiths Mark Bailey MP Graham Perrett MP Amy McMahon MP Peter Russo MP Jess Pugh MP Milton Dick MP Max Chandler Mather MP

### Supporters & Sponsors

A and J Electricial A Place to Belong Acacia Ridge Community Service Annerley Library Annerley RSL Annett Cummings Apex Brisbane Aust First Lending Baby Give Back Baked Relief Bakers Delight Fairfield Belona Benarrawa **Braille House** Brisbane Backvard Film Festival **Brisbane Boys College Building Better Communities Bunnings** Oxley **Bunnings Rocklea Coles Fairfield** Coles Local Stores Ascot, Woolloongabba and Adelaide St COVIU Create Annerley Cycling Safety Dawn Daylight DTM Express Edmund Rice Foundation **Ekibin Lions** Elorac Place **Emmanuel City Mission** Fairfield Library Flight Centre Head Office Food Connect Foundation Foodbank Givit **Groove Properties** Heather Luck Holland Park Church of Christ Inala Hub / Southwest Brisbane Community / Legal Centre Inc. Indi Tansey Jane Elvin LJ Hooker Real Estate Annerley Jean Griffin -Kyabra Junction Fest Group King St Bakery and Lend Lease Kurilpa Scouts - Yeronga Kyabra Community Association Labor Party Annerley Life Church Salisbury Lions Club Pinelands Lions Ekibin **Lions Pinelands** LOTE Marketing Love Food Hate Waste **Micah Projects** MKA Lions Mob<sub>23</sub> Moorooka Lions Mt Gravatt Community Centre Inc Multicultural Australia Murri Ministry

Neighbourhood Centres Quennsland Nudgee College **Oxley Creek Catchment Association** Oz Harvest Pantry Assist Annerley Phil Carnev Plant Empire Q1 Lions OCOSS **OCWA** OFCA Red Cross **Renegade Coffee Roasters** Resilient Kurilpa **ReThink Info Hub & Store RNA Solutions Rotary Club South Brisbane Rotary Club Stones Corner Rotary South Brisbane** Rotary Taylor Bridge Safe Communities Sandra Dunglison Share Shed Sherwood Neighbourhood Centre Siganto Foundation Southside Antiques Centre Southside Eyewear St David's Neighbourhood Centre Stanton and Treby Sales The Greengrocer Fairfield The Junction at Annerley Traction Transurban **Turnstyle Community Hub** Upbeats Victoria Moffrey Vintage Collective Voodoo Rabbit Fabric Welcome Dinner Project West End Uniting Church Wilderness Society Yeronga Bakery Yeronga Bushcare Group Yeronga Community Garden Yeronga DP RSL Yeronga Meals on Wheels Yeronga Residents Yes23

